#### Recess.

At eighteen minutes before five o'clock P.M. (Wednesday, July 29), on motion of Mr. Hill of Ipswich (Mr. Donato of Medford being in the Chair), the House recessed until the following day at eleven o'clock A.M.; and at that time the House was called to order with Mr. Donato in the Chair.

Recess.

### Thursday, July 30, 2015 (at 11:00 o'clock A.M.).

At the request of the Chair (Mr. Donato), the members, guests and employees joined with him in reciting the pledge of allegiance to the flag.

Pledge of allegiance.

### Silent Prayer.

During the Session, Representatives McKenna of Webster, Ferguson of Holden and Kuros of Uxbridge were invited to come up onto the House Rostrum. At the request of Mr. McKenna, the members, guests and employees then stood in a moment of silent prayer in respect to the memory of Timothy J. Ellsessar, 18, of Sutton, who died on Wednesday, July 29 while swimming in Lake Manchaug. Sadly, this is the second son of John and Luann Ellsessar to pass so tragically. In 2010, the Ellsessar family lost their son Michael, 16, from a cardiac event that befell him during a high school football game.

Timothy J. Ellsessar.

## Statement Concerning Representative Carvalho of Boston.

A statement of Mr. Mariano of Quincy concerning Mr. Carvalho of Boston was spread upon the records of the House, as follows:

MR. SPEAKER: I would like to call to the attention of the House the fact that one of our colleagues, Representative Carvalho of Boston, is unable to be present in the House Chamber for today's sitting because he is accompanying his wife to the hospital for the birth of their first-born child, a daughter. His missing of roll calls today is due entirely to the reason stated.

Statement concerning Mr. Carvalho of Boston.

#### Guests of the House.

During the Session, the Chair (Mr. Donato of Medford), declared a brief recess and introduced women from the Cape Cod a capella singing group Cape Harmony, who were celebrating their 10<sup>th</sup> Anniversary. The group then entertained the members of the House with two beautifully performed renditions. They were the guests of Representatives Hunt of Sandwich, Madden of Nantucket, Mannal of Barnstable, Peake of Provincetown, Vieira of Falmouth and Whelan of Brewster.

Cape Harmony a capella singers.

#### Resolutions.

The following resolutions (filed with the Clerk) were referred, under Rule 85, to the committee on Rules:

Resolutions (filed by Messrs. Mariano of Quincy and Chan of Quincy)

Taiwan.

supporting the friendship between Massachusetts and Taiwan in the international community; and

Resolutions (filed by Mr. Cullinane of Boston and other members of the House) promoting a multilateral approach to the potential crisis in the Dominican Republic;

Dominican Republic.

Mr. Galvin of Canton, for the committee on Rules, reported, in each instance, that the resolutions ought to be adopted. Under suspension of the rules, in each instance, on motion of Mr. Devers of Lawrence, the resolutions (reported by the committee on Bills in the Third Reading to be correctly drawn) were considered forthwith; and they were adopted.

#### Petition.

Mr. Donato of Medford presented a petition (subject to Joint Rule 12) of Paul J. Donato, David F. DeCoste and John F. Keenan for legislation to establish a sick bank for Linda Vitt, an employee of the Trial Court; and the same was referred, under Rule 24, to the committee on Rules.

Linda Vitt, sick leave.

Mr. Galvin of Canton, for the committee on Rules and the committees on Rules of the two branches, acting concurrently, then reported recommending Joint Rule 12 be suspended. Under suspension of the rules, on motion of Mr. Moran of Boston, the report was considered forthwith. Joint Rule 12 was suspended; and the petition (accompanied by bill) was referred to the committee on the Judiciary. Sent to the Senate for concurrence.

## Papers from the Senate.

The House Bill authorizing the town of North Reading to use certain conservation land for public way purposes (House, No. 3267, changed), came from the Senate passed to be engrossed, in concurrence, with an amendment inserting after section 1 the following two sections:

North Reading,—land.

"SECTION 1A. The town of North Reading shall transfer a parcel of land under the care, custody, management and control of the board of selectmen and dedicated for general municipal purposes to the conservation commission and the parcel shall be dedicated for conservation purposes. If no suitable parcel can be transferred to the conservation commission, the town shall acquire a parcel of land or a conservation restriction upon private or public land as defined in section 31 of chapter 184 of the General Laws. The land shall be dedicated or restricted to conservation purposes and under the jurisdiction of the conservation commission. The parcel dedicated pursuant to this section shall be of equal or greater size and value for conservation, park or water supply purposes when compared to the parcel described in section 1.

SECTION 1B. If the land conveyed pursuant to section 1 ceases to be used for the purposes described in said section 1 by a discontinuance vote of town meeting, the care, custody and control of the land shall transfer to the town of North Reading conservation commission for conservation, water supply or public park purposes upon a vote of the town meeting.".

The amendment was referred, under Rule 35, to the committee on Bills in the Third Reading. Said committee then reported that the amendment was correctly drawn. Under suspension of Rule 47, on motion of Mr. Jones of North Reading, the amendment was discharged from its position in the Orders of the Day; and it was

adopted, in concurrence

A petition (accompanied by bill Senate, No. 1983) of Barbara L'Italien and Frank A. Moran (by vote of the town) for legislation to authorize the Andover school district to convey a certain parcel of land, was referred, in concurrence, to the committee on Municipalities and Regional Government.

Andover,—land.

The Senate Resolutions encouraging equitable and diverse gender representation on the boards of companies in the Commonwealth (Senate, No. 1007) (on a petition), adopted by the Senate, was referred, under Rule 7A, to the committee on Steering, Policy and Scheduling.

Corporate boards,— gender equity.

## Reports of Committees.

By Mr. Galvin of Canton, for the committee on Rules and the committees on Rules of the two branches, acting concurrently, that Joint Rule 12 be suspended on the following petitions:

Petition (accompanied by bill) of Michael J. Moran and Linda Dorcena Forry relative to further regulating transportation network livery companies and drivers providing prearranged for-hire ride services for compensation using mobile applications to connect passengers with drivers. To the committee on Financial Services.

Network livery companies,— regulation.

Petition (accompanied by bill) of Michael J. Finn for legislation to establish a sick leave bank for Shirley Brathwaite, an employee of the Department of Children and Families; and

Shirley
Brathwaite,—
sick leave.

Petition (accompanied by bill) of Michael J. Finn for legislation to establish a sick leave bank for Maribel Sepulveda, an employee of the Executive Office of Health and Human Services;

Maribel Sepulveda, sick leave.

Severally to the committee on Public Service.

Petition (accompanied by bill) of Steven S. Howitt for legislation to prohibited the wearing of headphones while operating a bicycle. To the committee on Transportation.

Bicycles, headphones.

Under suspension of the rules, on motion of Mr. Moran of Boston, the reports were considered forthwith. Joint Rule 12 then was suspended, in each instance. Severally sent to the Senate for concurrence.

By Mr. Murphy of Weymouth, for the committee on Public Service, on a petition, a Bill creating a special law/home rule exemption for the Plainville fire department from the hiring practices of MGL Ch. 31 Sec. 58A (House, No. 3574) [Local Approval Received] [Representative Dubois of Brockton dissenting]. Read; and referred, under Rule 7A, to the committee on Steering, Policy and Scheduling.

Plainville,— civil service.

Mr. Nangle of Lowell, for said committee, then reported recommending that the bill be scheduled for consideration by the House.

Under suspension of the rules, on motion of the same member, the bill was read a second time forthwith; and it was ordered to a third reading.

By Mr. Nangle of Lowell, for the committee on Steering, Policy and Scheduling, that the House Bill relative to the charter of the town of Abington creating a department of public works (House, No. 3568) [Local Approval

Abington,—public works.

Received], be scheduled for consideration by the House.

Under suspension of Rule 7A, on motion of the same member, the bill was read a second time forthwith; and it was ordered to a third reading.

By Mr. Honan of Boston, for the committee on Housing, on a petition, a Bill relative to senior and non-elderly disabled housing (House, No. 1087). Read; and referred, under Joint Rule 29, to the committees on Rules of the two branches, acting concurrently.

Housing, seniors and disabled.

By Mr. Honan of Boston, for the committee on Housing, on a petition, a Bill to address the need for additional resources for the development of affordable housing for low-income seniors (House, No. 1109).

Affordable housing,—seniors.

By the same member, for the same committee, on Senate, No. 694 and House, No. 1130, a Bill relative to creating a statutory housing restriction and providing remedies related to statutory housing (House, No. 1130).

Housing, statutory restrictions.

By the same member, for the same committee, on Senate, No. 695 and House, No. 1108, a Bill to establish an apprenticeship program to ready vacant public housing apartments for occupancy (House, No. 3696).

Public housing,—apprenticeship program.

Severally read; and referred, under Rule 33, to the committee on Ways and Means.

### Emergency Measure.

The engrossed Bill establishing a sales tax holiday in 2015 (see House, No. 3659, amended), having been certified by the Clerk to be rightly and truly prepared for final passage, was considered, the question being on adopting the emergency preamble.

Sales tax holiday.

A separate vote was taken, as required by the provisions of Article XLVIII (as amended by Article LXVII) of the Amendments to the Constitution; and the preamble was adopted, by a vote of 15 to 0. Sent to the Senate for concurrence.

Bill enacted.

Subsequently, the Senate having concurred in adoption of the emergency preamble, the bill (which originated in the House) was passed to be enacted; and it was signed by the acting Speaker and sent to the Senate.

### Recess.

At thirteen minutes after eleven o'clock A.M., on motion of Mrs. Poirier of North Attelborough (Mr. Donato of Medford being in the Chair), the House recessed until a quarter before twelve o'clock noon; and at that time the House was called to order with Mr. Donato in the Chair.

Recess.

### Reports of Committees.

Mr. Dempsey of Haverhill, for the committee on Ways and Means, on a message from His Excellency the Governor returning with his disapproval of certain items and sections, and also with recommendations of amendments of certain sections contained in the engrossed Bill making appropriations for the fiscal year 2016 for the maintenance of the departments, boards, commissions, institutions and certain activities of the Commonwealth, for interest, sinking fund and serial bond requirements and for certain permanent improvements (see House, No. 3650) (for

General Appropriation Bill. message, see House, No. 3675), reported, in part, in each instance, that certain items (contained in section 2) and sections 119, 123, 140, 159, 176, 180 and 182 stand (as passed by the General Court). Severally referred, under Rule 7A, to the committee on Steering, Policy and Scheduling.

Mr. Nangle of Lowell, for said committee, reported, in each instance, that the matters be scheduled for consideration by the House.

Under suspension of Rule 7A, in each instance, on motion of Mr. Dempsey of Haverhill, the following items and sections were considered; and the sense of the House, in each instance, was determined by yeas and nays, as required by Chapter I, Section I, Article II of the Constitution, as follows:

Item 2000-1207 (contained in section 2), which had been vetoed by the Governor, then was considered.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 118 members voted in the affirmative and 37 in the negative.

## [See Yea and Nay No. 103 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 2000-1207 (contained in section 2) (State Climatologist) was passed, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 2200-0107 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$475,000 to \$450,000.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 120 members voted in the affirmative and 35 in the negative.

### [See Yea and Nay No. 104 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 2200-0107 (contained in section 2) (recycling and solid waste) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 4000-0300 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$92,240,452 to \$91,940,452.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 128 members voted in the affirmative and 27 in the negative.

# [See Yea and Nay No. 105 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 4000-0300 (contained in section 2) (Medicaid administration) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 4510-0110 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$1,046,051 to \$1,045,901.

Climatologist Item 2000-1207 stands, yea and nay No. 103.

Recycling and solid waste Item 2200-0107 stands,— yea and nay No. 104.

Medicaid administration Item 4000-0300 stands, yea and nay No. 105. On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 121 members voted in the affirmative and 34 in the negative.

[See Yea and Nay No. 106 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 4510-0110 (contained in section 2) (community health centers) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 4510-0112 (contained in section 2), which had been vetoed by the Governor, then was considered.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 154 members voted in the affirmative and 1 in the negative.

[See Yea and Nay No. 107 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 4510-0112 (contained in section 2) (postpartum depression pilot program) was passed, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 3000-1050 (contained in section 2), which had been vetoed by the Governor, then was considered.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 148 members voted in the affirmative and 7 in the negative.

[See Yea and Nay No. 108 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 3000-1050 (contained in section 2) (EEC assessment) was passed, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 3000-2000 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had reduced said item from \$6,675,311 to \$6,375,311.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reduction of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 141 members voted in the affirmative and 14 in the negative.

[See Yea and Nay No. 109 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 3000-2000 (contained in section 2) (child resource and referral centers) was passed, notwithstanding the reduction of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 3000-6025 (contained in section 2), which had been vetoed by the Governor, then was considered.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 142 members voted in the affirmative and 13 in the negative.

[See Yea and Nay No. 110 in Supplement.]

Community health centers. Item 4510-0110 stands, yea and nay No. 106.

Postpartum depression pilot program Item 4510-0112 stands, yea and nay No. 107.

EEC assessment Item 3000-1050 stands, yea and nay No. 108.

Child resource and referral centers Item 3000-2000 stands, yea and nay No. 109.

Preschool partnership initiative Item 3000-6025 stands, yea and nay Therefore item 3000-6025 (contained in section 2) (preschool partnership Initiative) was passed, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

No. 110.

Item 7061-9408 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$8,448,413 to \$7,938,413.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 120 members voted in the affirmative and 35 in the negative.

Targeted intervention Item 7061-9408 stands, yea and nay No. 111.

## [See Yea and Nay No. 111 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 7061-9408 (contained in section 2) (targeted intervention) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 7061-9611 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$2,310,000 to \$2,140,000.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 123 members voted in the affirmative and 32 in the negative.

# [See Yea and Nay No. 112 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 7061-9611 (contained in section 2) (After-School and Out-of-School) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 7010-0005 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$14,442,522 to \$13,249,522.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 124 members voted in the affirmative and 31 in the negative.

## [See Yea and Nay No. 113 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 7010-0005 (contained in section 2) (Department of K-12 Education) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 7002-0010 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$2,720,994 to \$2,620,994.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 124 members voted in the affirmative and 31 in the negative.

After-School and Out-of-School Item 7061-9611 stands, yea and nay No. 112.

Department of K-12 Education Item 7010-0005 stands, yea and nay No. 113.

Economic development administration Item 7002-0010 stands,—

### [See Yea and Nay No. 114 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 7002-0010 (contained in section 2) (economic development administration) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 1100-1100 (contained in section 2), which had been disapproved (in part) by the Governor then was considered.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the action of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by Chapter I, Section I, Article II of the Constitution; and on the roll call 122 members voted in the affirmative and 33 in the negative.

## [See Yea and Nay No. 115 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 1100-1100 (contained in section 2) (Administration and Finance) was passed, notwithstanding the action of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 1102-3199 (contained in section 2), which had been disapproved (in part) by the Governor then was considered.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the action of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by Chapter I, Section I, Article II of the Constitution; and on the roll call 123 members voted in the affirmative and 32 in the negative.

## [See Yea and Nay No. 116 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 1102-3199 (contained in section 2) (Office of Facilities Management) was passed, notwithstanding the action of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 7004-9322 (contained in section 2), which had been disapproved (in part) by the Governor then was considered.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the action of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by Chapter I, Section I, Article II of the Constitution; and on the roll call 124 members voted in the affirmative and 31 in the negative.

# [See Yea and Nay No. 117 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 7004-9322 (contained in section 2) (secure jobs pilot) was passed, notwithstanding the action of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 8000-0110 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had reduced said item from \$1,950,000 to \$1,574,500.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reduction of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 124 members voted in the affirmative and 31 in the negative.

## [See Yea and Nay No. 118 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 8000-0110 (contained in section 2) (criminal justice information) was passed, notwithstanding the reduction of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

yea and nay No. 114.

Administration and Finance Item 1100-1100 stands, yea and nay No. 115.

Office of Facilities Management Item 1102-3199 stands, yea and nay No. 116.

Secure jobs pilot Item 7004-9322 stands, yea and nay No. 117.

Criminal justice information services Item 8000-0110 stands,— yea and nay No. 118.

Item 2000-0100 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$6,311,774 to \$6,211,774.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 120 members voted in the affirmative and 35 in the negative.

## [See Yea and Nay No. 119 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 2000-0100 (contained in section 2) (Environmental Affairs) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 2330-0100 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$6,387,596 to \$6,162,596.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 125 members voted in the affirmative and 29 in the negative.

### [See Yea and Nay No. 120 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 2330-0100 (contained in section 2) (marine fisheries) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 4000-0014 (contained in section 2), which had been vetoed by the Governor, then was considered.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 130 members voted in the affirmative and 24 in the negative.

## [See Yea and Nay No. 121 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 4000-0014 (contained in section 2) (Edward Kennedy Community Health Center) was passed, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 4510-0600 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$4,350,791 to \$4,247,791.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 127 members voted in the affirmative and 28 in the negative.

## [See Yea and Nay No. 122 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 4510-0600 (contained in section 2) (environmental health program) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 4000-0051 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the

Environmental Affairs Item 2000-0100 stands, yea and nay No. 119.

Marine fisheries Item 2330-0100 stands,— yea and nay No. 120.

Edward Kennedy Community Health Center Item 4000-0014 stands, yea and nay No. 121.

Environmental health program Item 4510-0600 stands, yea and nay No. 122. Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had reduced said item from \$2,500,000 to \$1,609,520.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reduction of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 155 members voted in the affirmative and 0 in the negative.

## [See Yea and Nay No. 123 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 4000-0051 (contained in section 2) (family resource centers) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 4200-0200 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$27,187,833 to \$26,687,833.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reduction of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 129 members voted in the affirmative and 26 in the negative.

### [See Yea and Nay No. 124 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 4200-0200 (contained in section 2) (Detained residential) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 4512-0225 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had reduced said item from \$1,500,000 to \$1,000,000.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reduction of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 132 members voted in the affirmative and 23 in the negative.

### [See Yea and Nay No. 125 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 4512-0225 (contained in section 2) (gamblers treatment) was passed, notwithstanding the reduction of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 4512-0500 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$2,036,188 to \$1,736,188.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 139 members voted in the affirmative and 16 in the negative.

### [See Yea and Nay No. 126 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 4512-0500 (contained in section 2) (dental health program) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 4513-1111 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

Family resource centers Item 4000-0051 stands, yea and nay No. 123.

Detained residential Item 4200-0200 stands,— yea and nay No. 124.

Gamblers treatment Item 4512-0225 stands, yea and nay No. 125.

Dental health program Item 4512-0500 stands, yea and nay No. 126. The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$3,952,386 to \$3,737,386.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 120 members voted in the affirmative and 35 in the negative.

### [See Yea and Nay No. 127 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 4513-1111 (contained in section 2) (health promotion and disease prevention) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 5046-0000 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$375,349,758 to \$374,474,785.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 146 members voted in the affirmative and 9 in the negative.

### [See Yea and Nay No. 128 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 5046-0000 (contained in section 2) (adult support services) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 7004-0099 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$8,687,359 to \$8,317,359.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 126 members voted in the affirmative and 29 in the negative.

## [See Yea and Nay No. 129 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 7004-0099 (contained in section 2) (housing main administration) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 7113-0101 (contained in section 2), which had been vetoed by the Governor, then was considered.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 120 members voted in the affirmative and 34 in the negative.

## [See Yea and Nay No. 130 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 7113-0101 (contained in section 2) (Gallery 51 at the Berkshire Center) was passed, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 7004-0108 (contained in section 2), which had been disapproved (in part) by the Governor then was considered.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the action of the

Health care and disease prevention Item 4513-1111 stands, yea and nay No. 127.

Adult support services Item 5046-0000 stands, yea and nay No. 128.

Housing main administration Item 7004-0099 stands, yea and nay No. 129.

Gallery 51 at Berkshire Center Item 7113-0101 stands, yea and nay No. 130.

Home BASE

Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by Chapter I, Section I, Article II of the Constitution; and on the roll call 131 members voted in the affirmative and 24 in the negative.

[See Yea and Nay No. 131 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 7004-0108 (contained in section) (Home BASE) passed, notwithstanding the action of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 1595-6370 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had reduced said item from \$82,000,000 to \$80,000,000.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reduction of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 148 members voted in the affirmative and 7 in the negative.

[See Yea and Nay No. 132 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 1595-6370 (contained in section 2) (CTF transfer to RTA/Regional Transit Authority transfer) was passed, notwithstanding the reduction of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 1599-0026 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$13,841,000 to \$9,125,000.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 132 members voted in the affirmative and 22 in the negative.

[See Yea and Nay No. 133 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 1599-0026 (contained in section 2) (municipal regionalization reserve) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 2810-0100 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$46,361,985 to \$43,334,985.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 135 members voted in the affirmative and 20 in the negative.

[See Yea and Nay No. 134 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 2810-0100 (contained in section 2) (state parks and recreation) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 4590-0915 (contained in section 2), which had been disapproved (in part) by the Governor then was considered.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the action of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by Chapter I, Section I, Article II of the Constitution; and on the roll call 120 members voted in the affirmative and 35 in the negative.

Item 7004-0108 stands,—
yea and nay
No. 131.

CTF transfer to RTA Item 1595-6370 stands, yea and nay No. 132.

Municipal regionalization reserve Item 1599-0026 stands, yea and nay No. 133.

State parks and recreation Item 2810-0100 stands, yea and nay No. 134.

Hospital operations Item 4590-0915 stands,—

### [See Yea and Nay No. 135 in Supplement.]

yea and nay No. 135.

Therefore item 4590-0915 (contained in section 2) (hospital operations) was passed, notwithstanding the action of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 4513-1121 (contained in section 2), which had been vetoed by the Governor, then was considered.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 154 members voted in the affirmative and 1 in the negative.

## [See Yea and Nay No. 136 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 4513-1121 (contained in section 2) (stop stroke program) was passed, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 4590-0081 (contained in section 2), which had been vetoed by the Governor, then was considered.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 120 members voted in the affirmative and 34 in the negative.

### [See Yea and Nay No. 137 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 4590-0081 (contained in section 2) (public health evaluation grant) was passed, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 5042-5000 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$87,034,610 to \$86,884,610.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 129 members voted in the affirmative and 25 in the negative.

### [See Yea and Nay No. 138 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 5042-5000 (contained in section 2) (children's mental health) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 8324-0000 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$23,420,065 to \$23,230,065.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 128 members voted in the affirmative and 27 in the negative.

# [See Yea and Nay No. 139 in Supplement.]

Stop stroke program Item 4513-1121 stands, yea and nay No. 136.

Public health evaluation grant Item 4590-0081 stands, yea and nay No. 137.

Children's mental health Item 5042-5000 stands,— yea and nay No. 138.

Department of Fire Services Item 8324-0000 stands, yea and nay No. 139. Therefore item 8324-0000 (contained in section 2) (Department of Fire Services) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Subsequently a statement of Mr. Lyons of Andover was spread upon the records of the House as follows:

MR. SPEAKER: I would like to call to the attention of the House the fact that on the previous roll call, it was my intention to vote in the affirmative. However, I now find that, for some inexplicable reason, I was recorded in the negative.

Item 2200-0100 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$29,520,620 to \$29,195,620.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 125 members voted in the affirmative and 30 in the negative.

## [See Yea and Nay No. 140 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 2200-0100 (contained in section 2) (environmental protection administration) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 4510-0716 (contained in section 2), which had been vetoed by the Governor, then was considered.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 121 members voted in the affirmative and 33 in the negative.

#### [See Yea and Nay No. 141 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 4510-0716 (contained in section 2) (academic detailing program) was passed, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 1201-0100 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$94,872,929 to \$92,872,929.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 119 members voted in the affirmative and 35 in the negative.

#### [See Yea and Nay No. 142 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 1201-0100 (contained in section 2) (tax administration) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 7008-0900 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$14,590,000 to \$9,420,000.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the

Statement of Mr. Lyons of Andover.

Environmental protection Item 2200-0100 stands, yea and nay No. 140.

Academic detailing program Item 4510-0716 stands,— yea and nay No. 141.

Tax administration Item 1201-0100 stands,— yea and nay No. 142.

Travel and

Governor, the sense of the House was taken by year and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 146 members voted in the affirmative and 8 in the negative.

## [See Yea and Nay No. 143 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 7008-0900 (contained in section 2) (Office of Travel and Tourism) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 8000-0600 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$3,374,406 to \$2,416,482.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 137 members voted in the affirmative and 17 in the negative.

#### [See Yea and Nay No. 144 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 8000-0600 (contained in section 2) (Executive Office of Public Safety) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 4512-0200 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, then was considered.

The Governor had stricken certain wording and reduced said item from \$98,239,903 to \$95,999,903.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 154 members voted in the affirmative and 0 in the negative.

### [See Yea and Nay No. 145 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 4512-0200 (contained in section 2) (substance abuse treatment) was passed, notwithstanding the reductions of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Item 0330-0300 (contained in section 2), which had been reduced by the Governor, was considered.

The Governor had reduced said item from \$235,637,941 to \$232,000,000.

On the question on passing said item, notwithstanding the reduction of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 143 members voted in the affirmative and 11 in the negative.

# [See Yea and Nay No. 146 in Supplement.]

Therefore item 0330-0300 (contained in section 2) (Trial Court administrative staff) was passed, notwithstanding the reduction of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Section 119, which had been vetoed by the Governor, then was considered.

On the question on passing said section, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 125 members voted in the affirmative and 29 in the

Tourism office Item 7008-0900 stands, yea and nay No. 143.

Executive
Office of Public
Safety
Item 8000-0600
stands,—
yea and nay
No. 144.

Substance abuse treatment Item 4512-0200 stands, yea and nay No. 145.

Trial Court administration Item 0330-0300 stands, yea and nay No. 146.

Compensation rates PCS Section 119 stands,— negative.

[See Yea and Nay No. 147 in Supplement.]

Therefore section 119 (compensation rates PCS) was passed, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Section 123, which had been vetoed by the Governor, then was considered.

On the question on passing said section, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 119 members voted in the affirmative and 35 in the negative.

[See Yea and Nav No. 148 in Supplement.]

Therefore section 123 (session clerk) was passed, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Section 140, which had been vetoed by the Governor, then was considered.

On the question on passing said section, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 119 members voted in the affirmative and 35 in the negative.

[See Yea and Nay No. 149 in Supplement.]

Therefore section 140 (Martha's Vineyard Airport) was passed, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Section 159, which had been vetoed by the Governor, then was considered.

On the question on passing said section, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 120 members voted in the affirmative and 34 in the negative.

[See Yea and Nay No. 150 in Supplement.]

Therefore section 159 (drug disposal program) was passed, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Section 176, which had been vetoed by the Governor, then was considered.

On the question on passing said section, notwithstanding the objectons of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 120 members voted in the affirmative and 34 in the negative.

[See Yea and Nay No. 151 in Supplement.]

Therefore section 176 (public health evaluation) was passed, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

Section 180, which had been vetoed by the Governor, then was considered.

On the question on passing said section, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 119 members voted in the affirmative and 35 in the negative.

[See Yea and Nay No. 152 in Supplement.]

Therefore section 180 (human service providers) was passed, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

yea and nay No. 147.

Session clerk Section 123 stands, yea and nay No. 148.

Martha's Vineyard Airport Section 140 stands,— yea and nay No. 149.

Drug disposal program Section 159 stands, yea and nay No. 150.

Public health evaluation Section 176 stands, yea and nay No. 151.

Human service providers Section 180 stands, yea and nay No. 152. Section 182, which had been vetoed by the Governor, then was considered.

On the question on passing said section, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, as required by the Constitution; and on the roll call 118 members voted in the affirmative and 35 in the negative.

## [See Yea and Nay No. 153 in Supplement.]

Therefore section 182 (MassHealth bulk purchases) was passed, notwithstanding the objections of the Governor (more than two-thirds of the members present and voting having voted in the affirmative). Sent to the Senate for its action.

MassHealth bulk purchases Section 182 stands, yea and nay No. 153.

### Engrossed Bill — Land Taking.

The engrossed Bill authorizing the town of North Reading to use certain conservation land for public way purposes (see House, No. 3267, changed and amended) (which originated in the House), having been certified by the Clerk to be rightly and truly prepared for final passage, was put upon its final passage.

On the question on passing the bill to be enacted, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays (this being a bill providing for the taking of land or other easements used for conservation purposes, etc., as defined by Article XCVII of the Amendments to the Constitution); and on the roll call 154 members voted in the affirmative and 0 in the negative.

## [See Yea and Nay No. 154 in Supplement.]

Therefore the bill was passed to be enacted; and it was signed by the acting Speaker and sent to the Senate.

### Emergency Measure.

The engrossed Bill authorizing the town of Marion to grant an easement on Bird Island to the Department of Fish and Game for natural resource purposes (see House, No. 3571, amended) (which originated in the House), having been certified by the Clerk to be rightly and truly prepared for final passage, was considered, the question being on adopting the emergency preamble.

A separate vote was taken, as required by the provisions of Article XLVIII (as amended by Article LXVII) of the Amendments to the Constitution; and the preamble was adopted, by a vote of 50 to 0. Sent to the Senate for concurrence.

Subsequently, the Senate having concurred in adoption of the emergency preamble, the bill (which originated in the House) was put upon its final passage.

On the question on passing the bill to be enacted, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays (this being a bill providing for the taking of land or other easements used for conservation purposes, etc., as defined by Article XCVII of the Amendments to the Constitution); and on the roll call 153 members voted in the affirmative and 0 in the negative.

## [See Yea and Nay No. 156 in Supplement.]

Therefore the bill was passed to be enacted; and it was signed by the acting Speaker and sent to the Senate.

### Engrossed Bills.

The engrossed Bill validating the results of a certain town election in the town

North Reading,—land.

Bill enacted (land taking),—yea and nay No. 154.

Marion,— Land.

Bill enacted (land taking),—yea and nay No. 156.

Bill

of Groveland (see House bill printed in House, No. 3552) (which originated in the House), having been certified by the Clerk to be rightly and truly prepared for final passage, was passed to be enacted (more than two-thirds of the members having agreed to pass the same); and it was signed by the acting Speaker and sent to the Senate.

enacted.

The engrossed Bill authorizing the city of Boston to acquire temporary easements over certain parcels of land in the town of Brookline (see House, No. 3627) (which originated in the House), having been certified by the Clerk to be rightly and truly prepared for final passage, was passed to be enacted; and it was signed by the acting Speaker and sent to the Senate.

Id.

Motion to Discharge Certain Matters in the Orders of the Day.

The House Bill authorizing the town of Maynard to grant 6 additional licenses for the sale of all alcoholic beverages to be drunk on the premises and 1 additional license for the sale of wines and malt beverages not to be drunk on the premises (House, No. 3371) (its title having been changed by the committee on Bills in the Third Reading), reported by said committee to be correctly drawn, was discharged from its position in the Orders of the Day, and read a third time, under suspension of Rule 47, on motion of Ms. Hogan of Stow.

Maynard,—alcoholic beverages.

Pending the question on passing the bill to be engrossed, Mr. Speliotis of Danvers moved to amend it by striking out section 4 and inserting in place thereof the following section:

"SECTION 4. The licensing authority of the town of Maynard shall not approve the transfer of a license granted pursuant to this act to any other person, partnership, corporation, LLC, organization or any other entity for a period of 3 years from the date of original issuance.

If a license granted pursuant to this act is cancelled, revoked or no longer in use at the location of original issuance, it shall be returned physically, with all of the legal rights, privileges and restrictions pertaining thereto, to the licensing authority and the licensing authority may then grant the license to a new applicant at the same location under the same conditions as specified in this act if the applicant files with the licensing authority a letter from the department of revenue and a letter from the department of unemployment assistance indicating that the license is in good standing with those departments and that all applicable taxes, fees and contributions have been paid."

The amendment was adopted; and the bill (House, No. 3371, amended) was passed to be engrossed. Sent to the Senate for concurrence.

The engrossed Bill relative to establishing an internal special audit unit in the Massachusetts Department of Transportation (see House, No. 3666), being section 13 contained in the engrossed Bill making appropriations for the fiscal year 2016 for the maintenance of the departments, boards, commissions, institutions and certain activities of the Commonwealth, for interest, sinking fund and serial bond requirements and for certain permanent improvements (see House, No. 3650), which had been returned by His Excellency the Governor with recommendation of amendments (for message, see Attachment C of House, No. 3675), was discharged from its position in the Orders of the Day and considered forthwith, under suspension of Rule 47, on motion of Mr. Dempsey of Haverhill.

MassDOT,—audit unit.

The committee on Bills in the Third Reading reported recommending that the amendment recommended by His Excellency be considered in the form contained in House document 3675, Attachment C (as perfected by said committee); and the report was accepted. The amendment then was adopted.

The bill (see House, No. 3666, amended) then was sent to the Senate for its action.

The engrossed Bill relative to fingerprint-based criminal record checks for adoptive and foster parents (see House, No. 3668), being section 39 contained in the engrossed Bill making appropriations for the fiscal year 2016 for the maintenance of the departments, boards, commissions, institutions and certain activities of the Commonwealth, for interest, sinking fund and serial bond requirements and for certain permanent improvements (see House, No. 3650), which had been returned by His Excellency the Governor with recommendation of amendments (for message, see Attachment E of House, No. 3675), was discharged from its position in the Orders of the Day and considered forthwith, under suspension of Rule 47, on motion of Mr. Dempsey of Haverhill.

Foster parents,— background checks.

The committee on Bills in the Third Reading reported recommending that the amendment recommended by His Excellency be considered in the form contained in House document 3675, Attachment E (as perfected by said committee); and the report was accepted. The amendment then was adopted.

The bill (see House, No. 3668, amended) then was sent to the Senate for its action.

The engrossed Bill relative to expedited hearings regarding the final classification of sex offenders (see House, No. 3669), being section 51 contained in the engrossed Bill making appropriations for the fiscal year 2016 for the maintenance of the departments, boards, commissions, institutions and certain activities of the Commonwealth, for interest, sinking fund and serial bond requirements and for certain permanent improvements (see House, No. 3650), which had been returned by His Excellency the Governor with recommendation of amendments (for message, see Attachment F of House, No. 3675), was discharged from its position in the Orders of the Day and considered forthwith, under suspension of Rule 47, on motion of Mr. Dempsey of Haverhill.

Sex offenders,—classifications.

The committee on Bills in the Third Reading reported recommending that the amendment recommended by His Excellency be considered in the form contained in House document 3675, Attachment F (as perfected by said committee); and the report was accepted. The amendment then was adopted.

The bill (see House, No. 3669, amended) then was sent to the Senate for its action.

The engrossed Bill relative to the pension liability of the commonwealth (see House, No. 3670), being section 53 contained in the engrossed Bill making appropriations for the fiscal year 2016 for the maintenance of the departments, boards, commissions, institutions and certain activities of the Commonwealth, for interest, sinking fund and serial bond requirements and for certain permanent improvements (see House, No. 3650), which had been returned by His Excellency the Governor with recommendation of amendments (for message, see Attachment G of House, No. 3675), was discharged from its position in the Orders of the Day and considered forthwith, under suspension of Rule 47, on motion of Mr. Dempsey of Haverhill.

Pension liability.

The committee on Bills in the Third Reading reported recommending that the amendment recommended by His Excellency be considered in the form contained in House document 3675, Attachment G (as perfected by said committee); and the report was accepted. The amendment then was adopted.

The bill (see House, No. 3670, amended) then was sent to the Senate for its action.

The engrossed Bill relative to the earned income tax credit (see House, No. 3671), being section 67 contained in the engrossed Bill making appropriations for the fiscal year 2016 for the maintenance of the departments, boards, commissions, institutions and certain activities of the Commonwealth, for interest, sinking fund and serial bond requirements and for certain permanent improvements (see House, No. 3650), which had been returned by His Excellency the Governor with recommendation of amendments (for message, see Attachment H of House, No. 3675), was discharged from its position in the Orders of the Day and considered forthwith, under suspension of Rule 47, on motion of Mr. Dempsey of Haverhill.

The committee on Bills in the Third Reading reported recommending that the amendment recommended by His Excellency be considered in the form contained in House document 3675, Attachment H (as perfected by said committee); and the report was accepted.

On the question on adoption of the amendment, the sense of the House was taken by yeas and nays, at the request of Mr. Jones of North Reading; and on the roll call 152 members voted in the affirmative and 2 in the negative.

### [See Yea and Nay No. 155 in Supplement.]

Therefore the amendment was adopted.

The bill (see House, No. 3671, amended) then was sent to the Senate for its action.

The engrossed Bill relative to commitments of persons found incompetent to stand trial or not guilty by reason of mental illness (see House, No. 3672), being section 108 contained in the engrossed Bill making appropriations for the fiscal year 2016 for the maintenance of the departments, boards, commissions, institutions and certain activities of the Commonwealth, for interest, sinking fund and serial bond requirements and for certain permanent improvements (see House, No. 3650), which had been returned by His Excellency the Governor with recommendation of amendments (for message, see Attachment I of House, No. 3675), was discharged from its position in the Orders of the Day and considered forthwith, under suspension of Rule 47, on motion of Mr. Dempsey of Haverhill.

The committee on Bills in the Third Reading reported recommending that the amendment recommended by His Excellency be considered in the form contained in House document 3675, Attachment I (as perfected by said committee); and the report was accepted. The amendment then was adopted.

The bill (see House, No. 3672, amended) then was sent to the Senate for its action.

The engrossed Bill relative to the transfer of certain funds to be credited to the Housing Preservation and Stabilization Trust Fund for fiscal year 2016 (see House, No. 3673), being section 144 contained in the engrossed Bill making appropriations for the fiscal year 2016 for the maintenance of the departments, boards, commissions, institutions and certain activities of the Commonwealth, for interest, sinking fund and serial bond requirements and for certain permanent improvements

Earned income tax credit.

Amendment adopted,— yea and nay No. 155.

Trial,— competence.

Housing Preservation and Stabilization Trust Fund. (see House, No. 3650), which had been returned by His Excellency the Governor with recommendation of amendments (for message, see Attachment J of House, No. 3675), was discharged from its position in the Orders of the Day and considered forthwith, under suspension of Rule 47, on motion of Mr. Dempsey of Haverhill.

The committee on Bills in the Third Reading reported recommending that the amendment recommended by His Excellency be considered in the form contained in House document 3675, Attachment J (as perfected by said committee); and the report was accepted. The amendment then was rejected.

Mr. Dempsey of Haverhill then moved to amend the bill by adding the following seven sections:

"SECTION 2. Item 7010-0005 of section 2 of chapter 165 of the acts of 2014, as amended by section 49 of chapter 359 of the acts of 2014, is hereby further amended by inserting after the words 'General Laws' the following words:—; provided further, that any unexpended funds for the foundation budget review commission shall not revert to the General Fund and shall be made available through December 31, 2015.

SECTION 3. Item 0930-0100 of section 2 of chapter 46 of the acts of 2015 is hereby amended by striking out the words 'prior appropriation continued' and inserting in place thereof the following words:—; provided further, that as of June 30, 2015, any unexpended balance in item 0411-1005 shall not revert to the General Fund and shall be made available for expenditure in fiscal year 2016; and, provided further, that the comptroller shall transfer the unexpended balance to this item.

SECTION 4. Item 4510-0600 of said section 2 of said chapter 46 is hereby amended by striking out the words 'September 30, 2015' and inserting in place thereof the following words:— June 30, 2016.

SECTION 5. Item 7004-0099 of said section 2 of said chapter 46 is hereby amended by striking out the words 'Community Action Programs Inter-City Real Estate Corporation for the cities of Chelsea, Revere and Winthrop' and inserting in place thereof the following:— Community Action Programs Inter-City, Inc. for the communities of Chelsea, Revere and Winthrop.

SECTION 6. Item 7007-1202 of said section 2 of said chapter 46 is hereby amended by striking out the word 'private' and inserting in place thereof the following word:—non-state.

SECTION 7. Item 8900-0001 of said section 2 of said chapter 46 is hereby amended by striking out the words 'chapter 131 of the acts of 2010 shall be allocated to the programs in fiscal year 2015' and inserting in place thereof the following words:— chapter 131 of the acts of 2010 shall be allocated to the programs in fiscal year 2016.

SECTION 8. Section 2D of said chapter 46 is hereby amended by striking out item 7002-9701 and inserting in place thereof the following 5 items:—

7002-9701 For the purposes of a federally funded grant entitled, Federal Bureau of Labor Statistics ......\$2,124,386

# Department of Early Education and Care.

3000-0707 For the purposes of a federally funded grant entitled, Head Start	
Collaboration	\$175,000
3000-2010 For the purposes of a federally funded grant entitled, Race-to-the-	Top Early
Learning Challenge\$9	,786,651
3000-4001 For the purposes of a federally funded grant entitled, Preschool De	evelopment
Grant: Expansion Grant\$15	5,000,000

3000-9003 For the purposes of a federally funded grant entitled, Child Abuse

Prevention......\$541,000.".

The amendment was adopted.

The bill (see House, No. 3673, amended) then was sent to the Senate for its action.

The engrossed Bill relative to opiate overdoses in the Commonwealth (see House, No. 3674), being section 191 contained in the engrossed Bill making appropriations for the fiscal year 2016 for the maintenance of the departments, boards, commissions, institutions and certain activities of the Commonwealth, for interest, sinking fund and serial bond requirements and for certain permanent improvements (see House, No. 3650), which had been returned by His Excellency the Governor with recommendation of amendments (for message, see Attachment K of House, No. 3675), was discharged from its position in the Orders of the Day and considered forthwith, under suspension of Rule 47, on motion of Mr. Dempsey of Haverhill.

Trial,— competence.

The committee on Bills in the Third Reading reported that the amendment recommended by His Excellency be considered in the form contained in House document 3675, Attachment K (as perfected by said committee); and the report was accepted. The amendment then was adopted.

The bill (see House, No. 3674, amended) then was sent to the Senate for its action.

The House Bill eliminating the preliminary election in the city of Lynn in 2015 (House, No. 3693), reported by the committee on Bills in the Third Reading to be correctly drawn, was read a third time, under suspension of the rules, on motion of Mr. Fennel of Lynn; and it was passed to be engrossed. Sent to the Senate for concurrence.

Lynn,— elections.

Order.

On motion of Mr. DeLeo of Winthrop,—

*Ordered*, That when the House adjourns today, it adjourn to meet on Monday next at eleven o'clock A.M.

Next sitting.

Accordingly, without proceeding to consideration of the matters in the Orders of the Day, at eight minutes before four o'clock P.M. (Thursday, July 30), on motion of Mr. Hill of Ipswich (Mr. Donato of Medford being in the Chair), the House adjourned, to meet the following Monday at eleven o'clock A.M., in an Informal Session.